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·. SGCO& Co.LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

To the Members of Waaree Energies Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Waaree Energies Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Parent Company") and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group"), 
its associates which comprise the consolidated Bnlnnce Sheet ns nt Mnrch 31, 2019 , und tho consolidated 
statement of Profit and Loss, (including other comprehensive income) and the consolidated cash flows 
Statement & the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter 
referred to as "the consolidated lnd AS financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on 
the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements I consolidated financial 
statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid 
consolidated lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Indian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') of their consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial 
position) of the Group and its associates as at March 31, 2019, of consolidated profiUioss, (consolidated 
financial performance including other comprehensive Income) and its consolidated cash flows and the 
consolidated changes in equity for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143( 1 0) 
of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Rr.nronnihilitir.n for thr. /\IJClit of thr. Gon!lnlirlntr.rl lnrl 1\8 Finnnciol 8tntomcnt3 3oction of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Sr.No. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

1. Contingent assets with regards to certain Our audit approach in this regards was as 
percentage of sale consideration on follow: 
disposal of investments held in the nature 
of wholly owned subsidiary. 

During the year, the parent company has 
disposed of its investments held in the wholly 
uwlltH.l sul.Jstdiary company. As per the term~ 
of the Share Purchase Agreement and its 
amendment Rs. 420.57 millions will be 
withheld by the buyer towards the closure of 
pending obligations. and other litigations in 
~ud1 ~ubsld laty. I he Company has 
recognised Rs. 158.00 million on the basis of 
certainty and the balance amount of Rs. 
262.57 million will be recognised by the 
company on successful closure of such 
obligations and/or litigation which are 
contingent in nature. Till that time the 
company has considered it as Contingent 
Assets and has not recognised it as income. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Received and reviewed the 
a~reement(~) entered between both 
the parties. 
Reviewed the status of the obligations 
und/or the litigation mattt~rt> L.uv(jt (jU 
under the agreement(s). 
Evaluated the assumptions provided by 
the company regarding possible 
closure of the obligations and the 
outcome of the ongoing litigation(s). 
Subsequent posttton till the closure ot 
financials is also evaluated for the open 
positions. 

lhformatton Uther than the J=inancial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, Board's Report, Report on 
Corporate governance and Business Responsibility n'!port but does not include the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilit ies of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 

consolidClted financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013(hereinafter 
referred to :::1~ "tho /\ct") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated stoto of offoirs (consolidated financial 

position), consolidat8d profit or loss (consuliJdt~J ri ltdlll..idl ~~~ ru11 II dilL:~ im;lutlilly ul11~1 L:Utll~l~l'~"~ i v8 

income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the 
Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its 
associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Tllu l uS~udivt: Butut! ur Dil~dUI!:I ur u,~ CUIIIJ.il:illies induueLI ill the Group i:II\U or il~ i:IS~Odale~ are 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated lnd AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a . 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wi ll always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated lnd AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
aiJIJIUf .. Hiate lrr tile t.:ht:urnstarH.:es. Untler sect1or1 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 20'13, we are also 
responsible tor expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness ot such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropnateness ot management's use ot the going concern basis ot accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going concern. 
If w~:; L.urrdUl.lt:; l11dt a rrrattHial urrcertairrty exi::;t::;, we ctre relJuiretl tu tlr ctw attention In our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of 
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For 
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

(a) The financial statements I financial information of 4 subsidiaries viz., Blue Rays Solar Private Limited, 
Waaree Solar Energy Private Limited, Waaneep Solar One Private Limited and Saswata Solar LLP, whose 
financial statements I financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 1133.60 millions as at 31st March, 2019, 
total revenues of Rs.0.01 millions and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.0.15 millions for the year ended on 
that dats1 as cof')sidsrBd in the consolid:1tsd lnd AS fin :1nci3l 6t:Jtement6. The com~olid:Jted fin:Jnci31 
statements also include the Group's share of net loss of Rs. 0.001 millions for the year ended 31st March, 
2019, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of two associates, whose financial 
statements I financial information have not been audited by us. These financial statements I financial 
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furn ished to us by the Management 
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors. 

(b) The financial statements I financial information of 3 subsidiaries and viz. Waaneep Solar Private Limited, 
Kasila International 1-'te Limited and Waaree Japan KK whose financial statements I financial information 
reflect total assets of Rs. NIL as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of Rs. 601.72 millions and net cash 
outflows amounting to Rs. 0.08 millions for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
lnd AS financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss 
of Rs. 0.001 millions for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, in respect of one associates, whose financial statements I financial information have not been 
audited by us. These financial statements I financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to 
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) 
and ( 11) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on such 
unaudited financial statements I financial information. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements I financial information certified by the 
Management. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as requ ired by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on 31st 
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and the reports of the statutory 
auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies 
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group - Refer Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. 

ii. The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. 
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2. In respect of companies where managerial remuneration is within limit : 

As required by section 197(16) of the act, based on our audit we report that the Parent company paid 
remuneration to their directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and the limit laid down 
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

For SGCO & CO LLP 
Cll::illf:!l 1:!1.1 At.:t.:UI.II IlHIIl':i 

Firm's RI?Qi '5tration No.112081W/W100184 

Surash ura 
Partner 
Mem.No. 44739 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 28th May 2019 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements of Waaree Energies Limited 
(" lhe Pe:u elll Cutii!Jally") aS ur oliO rur I he yei:ll HlldHd :1 1 Mi:lrch 2019, we have audited the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies and its associates which 
arc componic::J incorporated in India, a3 of tht~t d~te . 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The re~pedive Board or Director~ of the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies and its associates, which 
are incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by these companies incorporated in India 
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("I CAl"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
20 13 ("the Act"). 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent Company's, its subsidiary companies and its 
associates incorporated in India, internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
oonduotod our audit In aooordanoc with tho Guidance I'Jotc laaucd by the 10/\1 and the Otandord:J on Auditing, 
issued by I CAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143( 1 0) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the I CAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 



SGCO & Co. LLP 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Moaning of lntornal Financial Controlc Ovor Financial Roporting 

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process desi~ned to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

l:lecause ot the inherent limitations ot internal tinancial controls over tinancial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, 
have, in all material respects, have an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, 
hRsP.rl on thP. intP.rnal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stCJted in tho GuidCJnco Noto on Audit of lntornCJI FinCJnciCJI Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

For SGCO & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
rinn's Registration No.112001W/W100104 

PICJcc : MumbCJi 

Date : 28th May 2019 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019 

Particulars 

Assets 
Non·current assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
lnveslment PropP.rty 
Goodwill on Connolidotion 
Other Intangible assels 
Intangible assets under development 
Financial assets 

Investments 
Trade receivables 
Security deposits 
Other financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Income tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 
Total non·current assets 
Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 
Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 
Total Assets 
Equity and liabilities 
Equity 
Equity Share capital 
Other equity 
Equity attributable to Owners 
Non Controlling interest 
Total equity 
liabilities 
Non·current liabilities 
rlmmch:tllh:tl.tiiiUt!s 
~UIIUWIIIUS 

Long term provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-current liabilities 
Total non·current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total out5tanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other current liabilities 
Total current liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements 
In terms of our report of even date 
ForS G C 0 & Co. LLP 

Partner 
Mem. No. 44739 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28"' May 2019 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28"' May 2019 

Note As at 
No. March 31, 2019 

2 
2 
2 

2 
2 

3 
4 
5 
6 

7 
8 

9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

17 
18 

1\! 
20 
21 
22 

23 

24 

25 
26 
27 

~ 
Director & CFO 
(DIN 00207506) 

899.26 

5.09 
1.1 2 

37.1 1 
2.14 

820.08 
126.50 

31 .79 
107.83 

3.75 
14.19 

2,048.86 

999.32 

2,151.50 
223.98 
971.34 
643.99 
221 .93 
606.45 

5,818.51 
7,867.37 

1,971 .38 
608.51 

2,579.89 
0.00 

:l,!>/!l.H!l 

b~H .Jl 

176.19 
16.88 
2.40 

853.79 

15.43 

6.05 
3,071.67 

585.41 
36.92 

718.01 
4,433.69 
7,867.37 

( Rs. in Millions) 
As at 

March 31,2018 

556.13 
271.73 

5.09 
11!i.23 

4,729.68 
528.16 

820.00 
147.95 

30.11 
74.08 
37.30 
26.51 

310.86 
7,652.83 

985.26 

144.36 
803.34 
61.77 

223.39 
664.54 
13.31 

248.28 
3,144.25 

10,797.08 

1,971 .38 
213.44) 

1,757.94 
0.00 

1,/!>/.!14 

4,1Ub.Hb 
152.78 

1,016.34 
5,275.97 

507.80 

1.93 
2,085.23 

765.29 
59.29 

343.63 
3,763.17 

10,797.08 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and l oss for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total income 

Expenses 
Cost of materials consumed 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Changes In inventories of finished goods (including stock-in-trade) and work-in-progress 
Other manufacturing and EPC project expenses 
Employee benefits expense 
Sales, administration, and other expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Total expenses 

Profit before share of profit or loss of Associate and Tax 

Add/{Less) : Exceptional Items 
Share of ProfiU(Ioss) of Associate 

Profit before Tax 

Tax expenses 
Current Tax 
Tax for earlier years 
Deferred Tax 

Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items That will not be reclassified to Profit or loss 
- Gain I (Loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 
- Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cashHow hedge 
- Income tax effect on above 

Total Comprehensive income for the year (After tax) 

Net Profit/(l oss) attributable to : 
- Owners 
- Null-t:U11lrulli11y i11I ~J~sl 

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to : 
- Owners 
- Non-controlling interest 

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to : 
- Owners 
- Non Controlling Interest 

Earnings per equity share: 
(Nominal value of Rs. 10/- each) 
- Basic & Diluted 

Notes 1 to 52 form an mtegral part of the Consolidated finanCial statements 
In terms of our report of even date 
For S G C 0 & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accoun nls 
Firm Regist~ 'on o. 112081WIW100184 

Partner 
Mem. No. 44739 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May 2019 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May 2019 

Note Year Ended 
No. March 31, 2019 

28 
?~ 

30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 

38 

21 

39 

Director & CFO 
(DIN 00207506) 

15,910.35 
?1n.~s 

16,127.30 

10,878.04 
1,254.61 

87.69 
698.44 
431.00 

1,180.28 
561 .14 
363.41 

15,454.61 

672.69 

370.51 
(0.03) 

1,043.17 

181.55 
0.56 

45.54 

815.52 

4.04 
2.47 

(2.27 
4.24 

819.76 

792.17 
nJ!i 

(4.24) 
-

796.41 
23.35 

4.16 

( Rs in Millions ) 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

13,410.09 
1n?.4? 

13,572.51 

8,250.30 
2,519.73 
(303.75) 
582.42 
361.62 
894.45 
571.95 
281.56 

13,158.28 

414.23 

-
(0.03) 

414.21 

168.22 
11.04 
(7.59) 

242.54 

1.02 
-

(0.35) 
0.67 

243.21 

230.62 
1 1.~/ 

(0.67) 
-

231 .29 
11.92 

1.23 

Company Secretary 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31 , 2019 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars 

As at Aprll1 , 2017 

Issue of bonus equity shares 

As at March 31, 2018 

Issue of equity shares 

As at March 31 , 2019 

OTHER EQUITY 

Debeture Securities 
Particulars Redemption Premium 

Reserve Reserve 

Balance as at April1 ,2017 - 13.13 
Utilised for issue of Bonus Shares. - (13.13) 
Adjustments during the year - -
Creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve 250.00 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Balance as at March 31 ,2018 250.00 . 
Adjustments during the year - -
Creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve 125.00 -
Transfer to Retained Earnings on Redemption of 
Debentures (237.50) -
On disposal of Subsidiary - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Balance as at March 31,2019 137.50 . 

Notes 'I to !i2 fom1 an Integral part of th8 standalone nnd11ddl Stdt~' ''~''t:; 
In terms of our report of even date 
For S G C 0 & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regis~t\n N: 112081W/W100184 

Suresh~~ 
Partner 
Mem. No. 44739 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May 2019 

Foreign 
Capital 

Currency 
Reserve on 

Retained 
Translation 

consolidation 
Earnings 

Reserve 

(2.72) 5.56 755.73 
- - (1,200.04) 

(0.22) (1.16) -
- - (250.00) 
- - 230.63 

(2.94) 4.40 (463.67) 
(0.13) - -

- - (125.00) 

- - 237.50 
2.33 - -
- - 815.52 

(0.74) 4.40 464.35 

alf of the Board 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May 2019 

No. of shares 
( Rs in 

Millions) 
75,822,500 758.23 

121,315,992 1,213.15 

197,138,492 1,971.38 

- -
197,138,492 1,971.38 

( Rs. in Millions ) 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

(1.90) 
-

-
-

0.67 
(1 .23) 

-
-

-
-

4.23 
3.00 

Director & CFO 
(DIN 00207506) 

Total 

769.79 
(1 ,213.1 6) 

(1.38) 
-

231.30 
(21 3.44) 

(0.13) 
-

-
2.33 

819.75 
608.51 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Statement of consolidated cash flow for the year ended March 31 , 2019 

( Rs in Millions ) 

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31 2019 March 31 2018 

A. Cash flow from operating activities : 
Profit before tax 672.69 414.23 
Add I (Less) : Adjustments for 
Depreciation and amortisation 363.41 281 .56 
Interest expense 531.22 513.88 
Remeasurement of Defined benefit Plans 4.04 1.02 
(Gain)ILoss on financial assets measured at Fair Value through profit and loss (~.35) (3.~5) 

Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cashflow hedge 2.47 -

Interest income (102.1G) (4G.93) 
(Gain)/loss on unrealised exchange difference (25.26) (0.22) 
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.87) 0.11 
(Gain)/loss on disposal of current investment (3.06) (5.67) 
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 29.08 
Provision for Wnmmty nfi 1R 40~4 

/\lluwLJm;c fur Credit Lu:;:;c:; on flnanclnl nssets '1.46 ~.£U 

Operating Profit Before Working Capitol changes 1,!'i04 77 1 ,?:'1:1 ?~ 
Add I (Less) : Adjustments for change in working capital 
(Increase) I Decrease in Inventory (14.05) (390.96) 
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade receivables (1,539.14) 433.59 
( lt tt:t~CI~~J I Ut!tteaSE! lh L.Utreht LoaM :w.oo !:>U!:> .~!i 

(Increase) I Decrease in Other current financial assets (175.91) 0.01 
(lnr.rp~~P) I nPrrp~~p in nthPr rllrrPnt fl~~pf~ (~79.58) (~ 1.'~5) 

lncrca5c I (Decrease) in Provision (45.12) 4.30 
Increase I (Decrease) in Trade payables 1,016.00 (195.54) 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilities 128.03 305.65 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 439.20 (445.90) 
Cash gonoratod from oporationc 854.75 1,408.38 

Addi(Less) : Exceptional items (370.51) -
484.24 1,408.38 

Add I (Less) : Direct taxes paid (166.53\ (390.52) 
Net cash Inflow from operating activities 317.71 1,017.86 

B. Cash flow from investing activities : 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment I intangible assets (558.96) (42.50) 
Capital work in progress /Intangible asset under devlopment (2.14) (271.73) 
Guutlw1ll on acqu1s1l1on ot subsidiary - (106.23) 
Fixed Deposits (872.75) (123.76) 
Acquisition of Non Currrent Investments (210.00) -
Proceeds from sale of current investments 210.20 170.77 
flroceeds !rom sale ot property, plant and equ1pment o.OH -

Proceeds from sale of Subsidiary 2,119.13 -
Investment in Subsidiary/ Associates (0.18) (160.04) 
Interest Received 102.16 46.93 
Change in Minority Interest (0.00) (719.31) 
Short term loans & advances received back I (given) 20.12 (269.61) 
Long term loans & advances received back I (given) 56.85 52.29 
Net cash inflow I (outflow) from investing activities 870.51 (1,423.19) 
C. Cash flow from financing activities: 
Proceeds I (Repayment) of borrowings (494.79) 912.31 
Interest Paid (531 .22' (513.88) 
Net cash inflow I (outflow) from financing activities (1,026.01) 398.43 

Net increase I (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) 162.21 (6.90) 
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 61.77 68.67 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 223.98 61.77 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Statement of consolidated cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2019 

( Rs. in Millions ) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents considered only for the purpose of cash flow statement 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31 , 2019 March 31 , 2018 
Cash on hand 0.99 0.34 
Balance with banks 222.99 27.00 
Balance with banks(Fixed deposit less than 3 months) - 34.43 
Cash and cash equivalents (closing) 223.98 61.77 

Notes: 
1. Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the lnd AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' as 
c;pl:'dfied In thl:' Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 
2. Previous year's fi~ures have been renroupen/reclassified wherever applicable. 

As per our attached report of even date 
For S G C 0 & Co. LLP 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 28th May 2019 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 28th May 2019 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the 
Indian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepamd under lhe historir.at r.ost r:onvP.ntinn with thP. P.xr:P.ption nf 
certain financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value, on an accrual basis of accounting. 

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per normal operating cycle of the 
Company and other criteria set out in as per the guidance set out in Schedule Ill to the Act. Based on nature of services, 
the Company ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of 
asset and liabilities. 
The Company's consolidated financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's functional 
cumincy, and all values are rounded to the nearest millions (INR 000,000), except when otherwise indicated. 

B. Principles of Consolidation 
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statements of Waaree Energies Limited and its 
subsidiaries and associates. The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis: 

Susbsidiaries : 
a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line by line basis by 

adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group 
balances I transactions and elimination of resulting unrealized profits I losses in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standard ('lnd AS')- 110 'Consolidated Financial Statements' . 

b) In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate 
prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange 
difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve. 

c) Goodwill on consolidation represents the excess of cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the 
subsidiary Group's share in the net worth of a subsidiary, as per Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) 110 'Consolidated 
Financial Statements'. For this purpose, the Group's share of net worth is determined on the basis of the latest financial 
statements, prior to the acquisition, after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such 
financial statements and the date of respective acquisition. 

d) Minority interest in net profits or losses of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against thP. 
inoomo or looo in order to arrive at tho not inoomo or looo ottributoblo to tho ohorcholdcr:J of tho Com pony. 

e) Minority lnteresfs share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance 
sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company's shareholders. 

0 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and 
other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's 
separate financial statements. 

g) Notes to the financial statements represent notes involving items which are considered material and are accordingly 
disclosed. Materiality for the purpose is assessed in relation to the information contained in the financial statements. 
Further, additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements of the subsidiary and I or a parent 
having no bearing on the true and fair view of the financial statements has not been disclosed in these financial 
statements. 

h) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its assets less 
liabilities as on the date of disposal is recognised in the consolidated Profit and Loss Statement being the profit or loss on 
disposal of investment in subsidiary. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 
Associates : 

i} The Group's investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the 
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually. The statement of profit and loss reflects the 
Group's share of the results of operations of the associate .The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an 
associa\e is shown on tne fllve of th~ ~~~~~~m~nt of Profit 110\1 los~ . 

If an entity's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long term 
interest that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate }, the entity discontinues recognising 
its share of further losses. 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its 
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value 
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss. 

C. Other Significant Accounting Policies: 

Accounting Estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the lnd AS, requires the management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported 
period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the period in which they are determined. 

Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were 
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market 
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial 
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

Deferred tax assets 
In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the 
deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon 
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. 
Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax 
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future 
taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the 
Company will realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets 
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry 
forward period are reduced. 

Defined benefit plans 
The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to 
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

ii Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till 
the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related 
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use 
and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and not ready for their 
intended use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost, related borrowing cost and 
other direct expenditure. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

iii Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets includes software are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. 

iv Service concession arrangement : 

Revenue 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue from power generation business 
is accounted on the basis of billings to the power off takers and includes unbilled revenue accrued upto the end of 
accounting year. Power off takers are billed as per tariff rate, agreed in purchase power agreement. Operating or service 
revenue Is recognised In the penod rn whrch servrces are rendered by the Company. 

Financial assets 
The Company recognises a financial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has an unconditional 
contractual.right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the discertion of the grantor for the construction. Such 
financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition and classification as loans and receivables . Subsequent to 
initial recognition, the financial asset .are measured at amortised cost 

lntangibale assets 
Tho oompany rooogninnn 011 inlnnuiiJiu u:l:u:l •ui:•inu frum u :u:Jvi•:rt r:nnr:r'~"•innnmtr•!)P.tn,.nt wh~n It h!l! rl!]ht to ch!lf!)e for 
usage of the concession infrastructure.An intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction services in 
service concession arrangement is measured at cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impainnent losses, 
if any.lntemal technical team or user assess the useful lives of intangible asset. Management believes that assigned 
useful lives of 24 years of solar power projects are reasonable. 

Detemination of fair value 
The fair value of intangible assets is determined by contract price paid for construction of solar power project. 

v Depreciation/ Amortisation 
Depreciation/ Amortisation is provided as stated below:· 

i) Depreciation on all Property, plant and equipment is provided on 'Straight Line Method' at the rates and in the manner 
prescribed in the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciations on additions & deletions made during the year is 
provided on ~ro-rata basis from & upto the date of acquisitions and deletions of assets respectively. Management believes 
that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule II of the Act, except for plant and machinery. The 
Company considers 5 to 10 years useful life for plant and machinery based on technical evaluation. 

ii) Leasehold improvement are written off over five year period. 
iii) Intangible assets are amortised over a period of four years.v 

vi Investment Property 
Investment properties are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are measured 
initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and 
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates 
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

Subsequent cost' ;m1 includAd in lhA aRRAI'~ r.anying ~mount or t oco~nicud m; " uopmoto oooot. ao opproprioto, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property 
is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are detennined based on an annual evaluation perfonned by an accredited external 
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the 
location and category of the investment property being valued. 

Investment Property is initially measured at cost including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment 
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent loss, if any. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal 
and the carrying amount of the item is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

vii Financiallnstruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

a) Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition 
In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are recognised 
initially at fair valua plus tmnsaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases 
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase 
or sell the asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model 
with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual tenns of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate 
("1'!11\") llillUiutl. lillt.Jalillll:!llt ya111~ ut lu~s~ arlslrtg oh mese assets are tecoghlsed lh me ~tat~Ment ot f-'rotJt and Loss. 

Derivative Financial instruments 
The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options contracts to mitigate 
the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a 
bank. 

(i) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss. 
This category includes derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges. Although the Company 
believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting 
under lnd AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated as hedge, or is so designated but is 
ineffective as per lnd AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss. 
Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized 
in net profrt in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income. 
Assets / liabilities in this category are presented as current assets I current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are 
expected to be realized within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date. 

(ii) C11Jh flow hedge 
The Company designates certain foreign exchange forward and options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk 
of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash transactions. 
When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the 
derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the net profit in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is 
discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss 
on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedge reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash 
flow hedge reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash 
flow hedge reserve is transferred to the net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the related 
forecasted transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash 
flow hedge reserve is reclassified to net profit in the Statement of Profrt and Loss. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an 
objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of 
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVPL. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
In accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ('ECL') model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures. 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified 
approach. doe3 not.require the Compeny to track change5 in 1..1cuit 1bk. RoUit;l, it lt;I..U\lllbt;~ iiii).Jciilult;llt lu~~ diiUwdll~~ 
based on lifetime ECLat each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether 
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not inw~asP.d sionifir.antly, 
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has Increased significantly, lifetime ECL is 
u~I:Rl. If, lu (j sullst:!tJU!:!IIl !.if:!IIU!J, Ci!:!tJ1l4uallly uf Ute Instrument Improves such mat mere Is no longer a s1gmt1cant 1ncrca~c 
in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month 
ECL. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all 
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are 
the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12· 
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the 
reporting date. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition of Financial Assets 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when Utt; Wllliaducd 1iyhts tu U1~ t:ash Ouws from the asset expire, or It 
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. · 

It the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and r.ontinuas to r.ontrnl 
the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it 
may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company 
eontinues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

b) Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument 

Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of 
its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Liabilities 

Initial Recognition 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables 
as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below 

Finandalliallilities at FVPL 

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings 'is 
recognised over the term of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the 
original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c) Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

viii Employee Benefrts 

a Defined Contribu1ion Plan 
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of 
contribu1ion required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are classified 
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions. 

b Defined Benefrt Plan 
The Company also provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plan, the liabilities of which is determined based on 
valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re­
measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in the OCI, in the period in 
which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCI are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of plan amendment or 
curtailment. The classification of the Company's obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation 
report. 

c Leave entitlement and compensated absences 
Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit 
Leave entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are provided based on a actuarial valuation, similar to 
that of gratuity benefit Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. 

d Short·term Benefits 
Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the 
undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses 
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the absences occur. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

e Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense as and when incurred. 

ix Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three month or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Y Rnrrnwino f:nc:tc: 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Also, the EIR amortisation is included in finance costs. 
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which takes substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use are added to the cost of such asset to the extent they relate to the period till such 
assets are ready to be put to use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
in which they occur. 

xi Foreign Exchange Translation and Accounting of Foreign Exchange Transaction 

a Initial Recognition 
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. However, for 
practical reasons, the Company uses a monthly average rate if the average rate approximate the actual rate at the date of 
the transactions. 

b Conversion 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing rate at the reporting date. 
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

c Treatment of Exchange Difference 
Exchange differences arising on settlement! restatement of short-term foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of 
the Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss except those arising from 
investment in Non Integral operations. 

xii Revenue Recognition 

a Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and that the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding 
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific 
criteria, i.e., whether it has exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering 
of services, in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. Revenue is recognised, net of trade discounts, 
sales tax, service tax, VATorothertaxes, as applicable 

b Contract Revenue in respect of projects for solar power plants , involving designing, engineering, supply, erection (or 
supervision thereon. commissioning, guaranteeing performance thereof etc., execution of which is spread over more than 
one accounting periods is recognized on the basis of percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the 
percentage of cost incurred upto the reporting date to estimated total cost for each contract 
Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates by the 
management (some of which are of a technical nature) of the expected costs to completion, the expected revenues from 
each contract (adjusted for probable liquidation damages, if any) and the foreseeable losses to completion. When it is 
probable that the total contract costs will exceed the total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense 
immediately. 

c Revenue in respect of operation and maintenance contracts is recognised on the basis of time proportion. 

d Revenue from domestic sales of goods is recognized when the significant risks and the rewards of ownership of the goods 
are passed on to the buyer (i.e. on dispatch of goods) except revenue from contracts in relation to government tenders 
which is recognised once the goods are supplied to the subcontractor at the site for installation. Revenue from the sale of 
goods is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances and discounts. 



WMREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

e For all financial assets measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest 
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate. to the gross 
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest 
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest 
income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding. Interest income is included 
under the head 'other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

f Dividend income is recognised when right to receive the payment is established. 

g Claims for insurance are accounted on receipts/ on acceptance of claim by insurer. 

xiii Viability Gap Funding(Governement Crant) 
Grants from the government are recognized at fair value when there is reasonable assurance.that the grant will be 
received and tl1e company will t;UIIlply witlr ~II ~ll~dretl conditions. 

Viability Gap Funding(Governement Grant) relating to service concession arrangement are included in non-current 
liabilites and current liabilities as deferred income and credited to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the expected 
lives of the related assets and presented with other income. 

xiv Taxes on Income 
Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised as an expense or income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in OCI. 

a Current Income Tax 
Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and 
exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and is made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit 
for tax allowances and exemptions. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current Tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Statement of Profit And Loss, other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity 

b Deferred Income Tax 
Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for 
all deductible temporary differences between the financial statements' carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and 
their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are 
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is 
r QCQyni~lill in Ure period that includoc tho onaotrnont date. Deferred tax oooct:J ore only rccogniJed to the extent that it i3 
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets 
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess re~lisation. 

Deferred tax ll!!et! and liabilitiM are uff~d wlr~ 11 Uu;1~:: b d l t:yc~lly t:llfUICt:dlJie llyl1llu ulfsel. Cwrellll<lX assl:!ls <Uitl lax 
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is probable that the 
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

xv Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
As at each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be 
impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous periods. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company determines the recoverable 
amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 
Recoverable amount is determined: 
-In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets' fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and 
- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of 

cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset. In determining fair 
value less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. 

lmpainmcntlo33C3 of continuing operation3, including impairment on inventoriM, t~re reGognised in the Gtt~tement of Profit 
and Loss, except for propwrtiwi prwviouily rwvalusd with the revaluation taken to OCI. For cuch proportioc, tho imp:~irmont 
is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 

When the Company consrders that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are 
written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through 
the Statement of Profrt and Loss. 

xvi Inventories 
Inventories of Finished Goods, Raw-Material, Work in Process are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is 
lower. StorM & Spares and Packing Materials art: valued at t.'USt . cu~t Wlllflli~t::~ ur llll (;U~t ur pur dill~~ lllli.l utlrt::l (;W[S 

incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and conditions. Cost is arrived at on weighted average basis . 
Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary, based on the past 
experience. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Obsolete, slow moving, surplus and defective stocks are identified at the lime of physical verification of stocks and where 
necessary, provision is made for such stocks. 

xvii Trade receivables 
A receivable is classified as a 'trade receivable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services 
rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment 

xviii Leases 
Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as lessee, where the Group has substantially all the risks and 
rewards ul ownership are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the lnceptlon of the lease at lower of 
fair value or the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognized for an equivalent amount. Each 
lease rental paid is allocateq between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant rate of interP-~1 on the 
outstanding liability for oJch yo:~r. 

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vests with the lessor, 
are recognized as operating lease. Lease rentals under operating lease are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

xix Trade payables 
A payable is classified as a 'trade payable' if it is in respect or the amuurrt due on account of goods purchased or services 
received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the 
Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled as 
per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment 
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 

xx Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders 
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus 
shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per 
equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all 
dilutivc potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity 
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. thii avliragli marklit valuii of the outi tanding equity shares). 

xxi Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect 
of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated 
absences) are detenmined based on managemenrs estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In 
case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks 
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 
a finance cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. 

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. The Company shall not recognize a 
contingent asset unless the recovery is virtually certain. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be 
measured reliably. 

xxii Exceptionalltems 
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that 
their disclosure is relevant to explain the perfonmance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such 
material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items. 

xxiii Recent accounting pronouncements 
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effectfrom 1st April, 2019. 

lnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and dfsclosure of leases for both parties 
to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and requires 
the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a tenm of more than twelve months, 
unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of 
profit and loss. lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17. 

As per lnd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities 
in the statement of profit and loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted 
aqain~t th~ l~ase liabilitie&. 
The Company is currently evaluating the impact 'on account of implementation of lnd AS 116 which might have significant 
impact on key profit & loss and balance sheet ratio i.e. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 
(EBITDA), Asset coverage, debt equity, interest coverage, etc.' 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes t• the Cc1solidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 2 : Property, plant and equipment ( Rs. in Millions ) 

Leasehold Land- Factory Plant & Electrical Computer Office Furniture Leasehold 
Capital 

Particulars La.d Freeh:zld Building Machinery Installations & Printers Equipments & Fixture 
Vehicles 

Improvements Total Work in 
Progress* 

Year Ended March 31 , 2018 
Gross Carrying Amount 
Cost as at April1 , 2017 3:l.56 300.' 2 61.45 211.41 8.56 16.30 5.09 11.36 16.54 29.94 690.33 -
Additions - 0.03 - 78.70 - 3.23 1.57 3.19 1.46 - 88.18 271 .73 
Disposals - - - (0.45) - 0.00 - - - - (0.45) -
Transfers - - - (8.40) - - - - - - (8.40) -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount :!1.56 300.1 6 61.45 281.25 8.56 19.53 6.66 f4.56 17.99 29.94 769.66 271.73 
Accumulated Depreciation 
Accumulated Depreciation as at April 1, 2017 3.56 - 15.74 62.06 4.86 15.48 2.50 4.25 4.91 28.46 141.82 -
Depreciation charge during the year 0.36 - 2.00 61.68 1.13 0.94 1.06 1.30 2.18 1.41 72.06 -
Disposals - - - (0.35) - - - - - - (0.351 -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 3.92 17.74 123.40 5.99 16.42 3.56 5.54 7.09 29.87 213.53 -
Net Carrying Amount ~.64 300.1 6 43.71 157.85 2.57 3.11 3.10 9.01 10.90 0.07 556.13 271.73 
Year Ended March 31 , 2019 
Gross Carrying Amount 
Opening Gross Carrying Amount ;::).56 300.16 61 .45 281.25 8.56 19.53 6.66 14.56 17.99 29.94 769.66 '271.73 
Additions - - - 759.33 29.06 4.93 4.55 2.51 7.52 22.80 830.70 539.46 
Disposals - - - (60.97) - - - - - - (60.97) -
Transfers - - - - - - - - - - - (81 1.18) 
Less : Adjustment on account of sale of subsidiary - (297.17) - - I - (0.08) (1 .07) (0.11) (0.03) - (298.46) -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount L9.56 2.£9 61.45 979.61 I 37.62 24.38 10.14 16.96 25.48 52.74 1,240.93 -
!Accumulated Depreciation and 1mpa1rment 
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 3.92 - 17.74 123.40 5.99 16.42 3.56 5.54 7.09 29.87 213.53 -
Depreciation charge during the year ).37 - 2.00 167.40 2.82 2.59 1.63 1.64 2.71 3.1 0 184.26 -
Disposals - - - (55.77) - - - - - - (55.77) -
Less : Adjustment on account of sale of subsidiary - - - - - (0.081 (0.23) (0.03) (0.01) - (0.35) -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment 4.29 - 19.74 235.03 8.81 18.93 4.96 7.15 9.79 32.97 341.67 -
Net Carrying Amount L5.27 2..99 41.71 744.58 28.81 5.45 5.18 9.81 15.69 19.77 899.26 -
During the year the Holding Company has started 1 GW fully AutoiT'atic nodule nanufacturing facility at Turrb Village, Umargaon Taluq, Valsad District of Gujarat State and capitalised an amount of Rs.806.07 
Millions against setting up of the plant. The Commercial production :~as l::een con11enced from August 1. 20· 8. 

~ 
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Note 2 : Investment Property ( Rs. in Millions ) 
Following are the changes in the carrying value of investment property for the year ended March 31, 2019: 

Particulars land 
Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2018 5.09 
Additions -
Deletion -
Gross carJYing value as at March 31, 2019 5.09 
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2018 -
Depreciation for the period -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2019 -
Carrying value as at March 31 ,~019 5.09 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of investment property for the year ended March 31, 2018: 

Particulars land 
Gross carrying value as at April1, 2017 5.09 
Additions -
Deletion -
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2018 5.09 
Accumulated depreciation as at April1, 2017 -
Depreciation for the period -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018 -
Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 5.09 

c~llllidlluu vr P.lll VdiU~ • 

The fair value taken for the period ended March 31, 2019 is based on valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer. The fair value is 
arrived based on the prevailing rates. The valuation taken for the period ended March 31, 2018 is based on the guideline rates prescribed by the 
Government of Tamilnadu. The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2 fair value hierarchy. 

Note 2 : Other Intangible assets 

Solar Power Computer 
Intangible Asset 

Particulars Total under Plant• Software development .. 
Year Ended March 31 , 2018 
Gross Carrying Amount 
Cost as at April 01, 2017 5,272.37 19.09 5,291.46 566.29 
Additions - 1.31 1.31 105.96 
Write off (144.09 
r.tn~ino Grnss Carryino Amount 5,272.37 20.40 5,292.n 528.16 
Accumulated Amortisation 
Accumulated Amortisation April 01, 2017 336.23 17.18 353.41 -
i\morti~otion chnrgo for the year 208.30 1.37 709.1)7 

Closing Accumulated Amortisation 544.53 18.55 563.08 -
Closing Net Carrying Amount 4,727.84 1.85 4,729.68 528.16 

Year Ended March 31, 2019 
Gross Carrying Amount 
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 5,272.37 20.40 5,292.77 528.16 
Additions 1,275.98 - 1,275.98 749.96 
Transfers - - - (1,275.98) 
Less : Adjustment on account of sale of subsidiaJY (6,505.771 - {6,505.m -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 42.58 20.40 62.98 2.14 

Accumulated Amortisation 
Opening Accumulated Amortisation 544.53 18.55 563.08 -
Amortisation Charge for the year 188.24 0.97 189.21 -
Less : Adjustment on account of sale of subsidiary (726.42) - (726.42) 

Closing Accumulated Amortisation 6.35 19.52 25.87 -
Closing Net Carrying Amount 36.23 0.88 37.11 2.14 

' The Solar Power Plants includes :-

'The Solar Power Plants includes : 0.5 MW located in the state of Madhya pradesh awarded under tender and Power Purchase agreement (PPA) 
with State Electricity company. 

''Intangible assets under development includes 400 KW Solar Roof top power plants at16 different locations on Government Buildings / Institutions 
in the state of Delhi. The power purchase agreement (PPA) has been signed with various Government institutions. 
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( Rs. in Millions) 
Note 3 : Investments 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31 , 2019 March 31, 2018 

I. Investments valued at deemed cost 
Investment in equity shares 
lnVF~stmP.nt in ::~ssnr.i::~IP. 0.08 -

0.08 . 
Investment in preference shares 
Investment In other companies 720.00 720.00 

720.00 720.00 
Investment in debentures 
Investment In other companies 100.00 100.00 

100.00 100.00 

820.08 820.00 

Note 3 1 Detailed list of non-current investments 
As at As at 

Particulars 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Number ( Rs. in Millions) Number ( Rs. in Millions) 
I. Investments valued at cost, fully paid up, unquoted, unless otherwise 
stated 
a) Investments in equity shares: 
i) In associate 
Shalibhadra Energies Private Limited 2,778 0.03 2,778 0.03 
Share of Loss in Associate - (0.03) - (0.03) 

2,778 . 2,778 . 

Waansang Solar Private Limited 2,600 0.03 - -

Share of Loss in Associate - (0.00) - -
2,600 0.02 . . 

Waansang Solar One Private Limited 4,900 0.05 - -
Share of Loss in Associate - (0.00) - -

4,900 0.05 - -
b) Investments in preference shares: 
(i) Investment In other companies 
(Face value of~ 10 each) 
Csare Bonetti -India Private Limited 9,000,000 720.00 9,000,000 720.00 

9,000,000 720.00 9,000,000 720.00 
c) Investments in Compulsory Convertible Debentures: 
i) In other companies 

Taxus Infrastructure and Power Projects Private Limited 100,000 100.00 100,000 100.00 
(Face value of ~ 1000 each) 100,000 100.00 100,000 100.00 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Details: 
Aggregate of non-current investments: 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 820.08 820.00 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
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( Rs. in Millions } 
Note 4 : Trade receivables 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Secured, considered good 58.93 53.94 
llnsP.r.llrP.rl, r.nnsirlered aood 67.57 94.01 

126.50 147.95 

Note 5 : Security deposits 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Security Deposits 31.79 30.11 

31.79 30.11 

Security Deposits stated above include Deposits to · 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Relatives of director 19.00 19.00 

Note 6 : Other financial assets 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31 , 2019 March 31 , 2018 
Fixed Deposits 107.83 74.08 

107.83 74.08 

Note 7 : Income tax assets (net} 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Advance Tax & TDS (Net of Provisions) 3.75 26.51 

3.75 26.51 

Note 8 : Other non-current assets 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Capital Advances . 60.76 
Deferred portion of financial assets carried at amortized cost 14.19 15.10 
Viability Gap Funding Receivable. . 235.00 

14.19 310.86 

Note 9 : Inventories 
1Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value} 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Raw Materials and components 647.77 552.82 
Including goods-in-transit of Rs. 397.30 million (March 31, 2018 Rs.204.09 Mn) 
Packing Materials 7.68 3.65 
Work-in-process 72.53 24.18 
Finished goods 106.81 215.02 
Stock-in-trade 164.53 189.58 

999.32 985.26 
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( Rs. in Millions ) 
Note 10 : Investments 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Investment valued at Fair Value 
Investment in mutual funds - 144.36 
Total Current investments - 144.36 

Note 10 1 Detailed list of Current investments 
A!i at Marr.h 31, 201!1 As at Marr.h 31, 70111 

Particulars 
Units (Rs. in millions) Units (Rs. in millions) 

I. Investments valued at fair value, fully paid up, 
unquoted, unless otherwise stated 
a) Investments in mutual fund 
UTI Short Term Income Fund - - 2,454,762 51.82 
HDFC Regular Savings Fund-Growth - - 676,378 23.27 
ICICI Prudential Regular Income - - 1,326,262 23.22 
Kotak Floater ST - Reg - - 116 0.33 
1\otak Income Oppurtulty Fund Growth - - 1,108,986 21 .18 
Reliance Regular Saving Fund Debt - - 1,014,520 24.53 

Total l.urr~ht nw~sttMhts - 14Uti 

rarticulal'! As at As at 
March 31 , 20·19 March 31, 2018 

Aggregate of current investments: 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 144.36 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

Nota 11 · Trada rP.r.P.ivahiP.s .. 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

( Unsecured ) 
Considered Good 2,190.98 841.36 
Considered Doubtful - 32.30 

2,190.98 873.66 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - (32.30) 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (39.48) (38.02) 

2,151 .50 803.34 

Trade Receivable stated above include: 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31 , 2019 March 31 , 2018 

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Companies I LLP where directors are interested 201.44 6.17 

Note 12 : Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Balances with banks 
-In current account 132.67 27.00 
-In cash credit accounts 90.32 -
Cash on Hand 0.99 0.34 
Fixed deposits with banks with original maturity of less than three months - 34.43 

223.98 61.77 
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{ Rs. in Millions ) 
Note 19 · Borrowings 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Secured 
Non Convertible Debentures 
14.00% Non Convertible Debentures- Tranche -I -
Less: Current maturities of long term debt -. 
Non Convertible Debentures 
15.50% Non Convertible LJebentures - Tranche -II 539.29 
Less: Current maturities of long tern1 debt (316.00) 

223.29 

Hire Purchase Loans 7.51 
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (2,61) 

4.90 

Term Loan from Banks -
Less: Current maturities of long term debt -

. 

Term Loan rrom others 508.06 
Less: Current maturities of long term debt {77.93) 

430.13 
Unsecured 
T 41!1'11\ I Vdll r. Ulll ulhuu: -
Less: Current maturities of long term debt -

. 

6 68.3~ 

Non Convertible Debentures includes(Se~:ured) 
Tranche - I, 14.00% Secured, Listed, Rated, Redeemable 450 Nos of Non-Covertible Debentures of face value Rs.1 million each 
aggregating to Rs.Nil million {PY Rs. 450 millions), are secured by way of:-
{i) First ranking pledge of over 95.46% shares of Waaree Energies Limited held by the Promoters and Promoters Group 

435.01 
{225.00) 
210.01 

536.1!) 

536.15 

4.58 
(? ~R) 

1.62 

2,263.18 
{117.03) 

2,146.15 

209.35 
-

209.35 

1,088.12 
{84.55) 

1,003.57 

4,100.80 

{ii) First ranking pledge of over 49% shares held in Waaneep Solar Private Limited {wholly owned subsidiary) of Waaree Energies Limited 
along with its Nominees has been released on August 7, 2018 
(iii) First ranking exclusive charge on the Designated Escrow Account and its sub-accounts, if any 
(iv) First ranking exclusive chargP. on the permitted investmcnt5 in Debt Service Resetve Account ( DSRA) 
(v) r<~~iJu"l didiYI:! utt all tile fl)(ed and current assets 
(vi) Joint and several personal guarantee provided by the guarantors, viz. Mr. Hitesh Doshi and Mr. Viren Doshi 
(vii) First, sole and exclusive charge on all the immovable and movable properties and assets comprised in the under construction solar 
project situated at Village O.G. Kuppam, Nagari Mandai, Andhra Pradesh ann ownP.rl bv WaanftftP ::lnlnr Priv:1tr I imitid (wholly ownod 
~ui.J6 iutd1Y) II<.~~ I.Jl!l!ll released on Augu:sl 7, 2018 
The Debentures have been fully repaid on July 24, 2018. 

Tranche -II, 15.50% Secured, Listed, Rated, Redeemable 550 Nos of Non-Covertible Debentures of face value Rs.1 million each 
aggregating to Rs.550 million (PY Rs. 550 millions), are secured by way of: 
(i) First ranking pledge of over 95.46% shares of Waaree Energies Limited held by the Promoters and Promoters Group 
{ii) First ranking pledge of over 49% shares held in Waaneep Solar Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary) of Waaree Energies Limited 
along with its Nominees has been released on August 7, 2018 
(iii) First ranking exclusive charge on the Designated Escrow Account and its sub-accounts, if any 
(iv) First ranking exclusive charge on the permitted investments in Debt Serve Reserve Account ( DSRA ) 
(v) Residual charge on all the fixed and current assets 
(vi) Joint and several personal guarantee provided by the guarantors, viz. Mr. Hitesh Doshi and Mr. Viren Doshi 
The Debentures are redeemable in 7 quarterly installments starting May 1, 2019. 

During the year Company has issued 13.50% Secured, Unlisted, Unrated, Redeemable 500 Nos of Non-Covertible Debentures of face 
value Rs.1 million each aggregating to Rs.500 million on private placement basis on September, 11 2018 and same has been fully 
redeemed on January 2, 2019 along with interest. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

( Rs. in Millions ) 
Hire Purchase Loans (Secured) 
Hire purchase Loan from Banks amounting to Rs. 7.51 millions (PY Rs. 4.58 millions) which is secured by hypothecation of Vehicle 
financed. The said loan is repayable monthly in 36 to 60 equal instalments@ interest rate of 9.10% p.a to 9.66% p.a. 

Term Loan from Bank include: 
a) Term loan of Rs. NIL (March 31, 2018- INR 2,263.1R mn) i!: ~ccured by first pJri-pa!!!!U charge by way uf equitable mortgage on 
Company's immovable properties and hypulliecalion of movable 11xec1 assets both present and future, of the respective project of the 
Company. It was further secured by way of pledge in demat form representing 43.81% of issued and paid up share capital of the Company 
and Viability Gap Funding (VGF) receipt from SECI. Loan from Union Bank of India & Bank of Baroda was luther secured by Corporate 
Guarantee of the holding company and Mahavir Thermoequip Private Limited. 

b) Term Loans from banks are repayable as under: 
Term loan (i) sixty structured quarterly installments starting from July'2016 upto April'2031 
Term loan (ii) five equal annual installments starting from June'2016 upto June'2020 
Term loan (iii) sixty four structured quarterly installments starting from April'2017 uptq January'2033 

Term Loan from others includes (Secured) 

Term loan of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2017 Rs. 1088.12 mn) was secured by first pari-passu charge by way of equitable mortgage on 
Company's immovable properties and hypothecation of movable fixed assets both present and future, of the project of the Company. 
Further it was also secured by way of pledge in demat form representing 17.20% of issued and paid up share capital of the holding 
Comapny and VGF receipt from SECI. 

Term Loans from PTC India Financial Services Limited. (PFS) is repayable as under: 
Term loan (i) sixty structured quarterly installments starting from July'2015 upto April'2031 
Term loan (ii) five equal annual installments starting from June'2016 upto June'2020 

Loan from Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited (IREDA) amounting to Rs.514.65 million (PY Rs.218.20 millions). The 
loan has to be repaid in 20 quarterly instalments starting from September 30, 2019 and carries interest rate of 10.80% per annum. The loan 
is primarily secured by hypothecation of all Movable Assets of 1 GW Solar PV Module Manufacturing plant at Village-Tumb, Tai­
Umbergaon, Dist-Valsad, Gujarat and second charge on existing movable and immovable assets of the company. The loan is also 
collaterally secured by fixed deposit of Rs.78.00 million(Rs.39.00 million till 31st March, 2018) and personal guarantee by one of the 
Director and his relative. 

Note 20 : Long term provisions 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31 , 2018 

Provision for warranty 153.89 137.24 

Provision for employ~~ benefits: 
Leave entitlement 22.30 15.45 
Gratuity - 0.09 

176.19 152.78 

In pursuance of Accounting Standard- lnd AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets', the provisions required have been 
incorporated in the books of accounts in the following manner 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Opening Balance 137.24 111.87 
Additions during the year 65.18 40.34 
Less: Utilisation during the year (48.53) (1 4.97) 
Closing Balance 153.89 137.24 

The provision for warranty represents the expected outflow of resources against claims for performance shortfall expected in future over 
the life of the guarantee assured. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Accompanying notes to the consoidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

( Rs. in Millions ) 
Note 21 :Tax expenses 
(a) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Current tax expense (A) 
Current year 181 .55 168.22 

Short/(Excess) provision of earlier years (B) 
Tax for earlier years 0.56 11.04 

Deferred tax expense (C) 
Origination and reversal of temporary ~ifferen~flfi .4fif.-4 (i'.Q9 

Tax expetHie recognised In the income statement (A+B+C) 227.65 171.67 

(IJ) Amounts rer.n(lh!Sed mother comprehonslvc Income 
Year Ended March 31 2019 Yeo:~r FnrfPd March 31 2018 

Particulars 
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax 

(expense)/ benefit 
benefit 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 

Remeasurements of the defined benefit (4.04) 1.41 (2.63) (1.02) 0.35 (0.67) 
plans 
Fair value changes on derivatives (2.47) 0.86 (1.61) - - -
designated as cashflow hedge 

(6.51) 2.27 (4.24) (1.02) 0.35 (0.67) 

c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31 , 2019 March 31, 2018 

Profit before tax 1,043.17 414.21 
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (Current year 34.944% and Previous Year 34.608%) 364.53 143.35 
Tax effect of : 
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses (228.95) 10.86 
Tax effect of Other Income (3.48) 15.45 

Others 94.99 (8.93) 
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 0.56 10.95 

Tax expense as per Statement of Profit & Lo,;,; 227.65 171.67 
Effective tax rate 21.823% 41.447% 

(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31 , 2018 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 
Property, Plant and Equipments 33.84 -

Excess of capital expenditure allowed in income tax over expenditure debited to Profit and Loss Account. 
5.82 13.25 

39.66 13.25 
Deferred tax asset 
Property, Plant and Equipments - 17.65 
Provision for doubtful debts/ advances 0.54 11.68 
Provision for expected credit loss 13.80 13.16 
Provision for Discount on Issue of Debentures - 2.28 
Provision for employee benefits 8.44 5.78 

22.78 50.55 

Deferred tax asset (Net) 16.88 (37.30) 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

( Rs. in Millions ) 
Note 22 : Other non-current liabilities 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31 2019 March 31 2018 
Government Grant - 991.24 
Deposits from dealer, franchisee etc. 2.40 25.10 

2.40 1,016.34 
Note 23 : Borrowmgs 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Loans repayable on demand 
Secured 
From Banks:-
Cash credit facility - 252.08 
Buyers credit - 103.!39 
Unsecured 
Inter Corporate Deposits-Related Parties 11.25 -
Inter Corporate Deposits-Others 4.18 152.13 

15.43 507.80 
Secured loans 
Loan frum DAn~.!. i11duu~~ Cd~li ~:1eull l<idllly C:llld Buyers credit trom !:>tate !:lank ot India amounting to Rs.Nil millions (PY Rs.252.08 
millions) and Rs. Nil millions (PY Rs 103.59 millions) respectively are secured against: 
i) hypothecation of the entire current assets of the Company. 
ii) and collaterally secured by mortgage of factory land & building & hypothecation of plant & machinery of the Company. 
The said facility is also secured by mortgage of personal property of relative of directors and personal guarantee of two directors of the 
Unsecured loans 
Intercorporate deposits amounting to Rs. 15.44 millions (PY Rs. 152.13 millions) are Repayable on demand and carries interest from 0% 
p.a. To 18% p.a. 
Note 24 : Trade payables 

rartlcular! 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

... 
Note 25 : Other financial hab1hbes 

Particulars 

Current maturities of long term debt 
Interest accrued 
Payables for capital goods 
Other Payables 

Note 26 : Provisions 

Particulars 

Provision for employee benefits: 
Leave entitlement 
Others: 
Provision for taxation (net of advance tax) 

. . . Note 27 : Other current hab1hbes 

Particulars 

Advances from customers 
Statutory dues payable 
Deposits from dealer, franchisee etc. 
Advance received towards land aggregation 
Government Grant 
Others 

Aut 
March 31, 2019 

6.05 
3,071.87 
3,077.92 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

396.54 
14.36 
7.01 

167.50 
585.41 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

1.85 

35.07 
36.92 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

624.66 
24.77 
67.73 

0.85 
718.01 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

1.93 
2,085.23 
2,087.16 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

424.61 
38.10 

302.58 
-

765.29 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

1.45 

57.84 
59.29 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

219.94 
20.76 
41 .75 
13.72 
47.00 
0.47 

343.63 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

Note 28 : Revenue from operations 

Particulars Year Ended 
March 31 2019 

Sale of products and services 
Sale of Solar Power Products # 15,281.77 
Sale of Services 3~.60 

Generation of Electricity from Renewal Sources 538.46 

Other Operating revenue 
::>ale of scrap 21.25 
Franchisee Fees 34.19 

15,910.35 

#The above includes revenue from EPC contracts of Rs. 4,282.41 Millions (PY Rs. 2739.37 Millions). (Refer Note 44) 

Note 29 : Other income 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31 , 2019 
Interest Income 102.16 
Interest received on financial assets carried at amortised cost 6.87 
Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) 24.07 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.87 
Profit on sale of current investment 3.06 
Government grant 35.41 
Fair value gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 4.35 
Miscellaneous Receipts 40.16 

216.95 

Note 30 : Cost of materials consumed 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31 , 2019 
Raw Materials 
Opening Stocks 552.82 
1\dd: rurchases 11 ,497.70 
Less: Closing Stocks (647.77) 
Less: Cost of Rnw m;:~tP.ri:=tls sold to Subsidiaries (524.71) 

10,R78.04 

Note 31 : Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Particulars Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

Purchases 1,254.61 
1,254.61 

Note 32 : Changes In inventories of finished goods (including stock-in-trade) and work-in-progress 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 
Opening Inventory 
Traded Goods 192.35 
Finished Goods 215.02 
Work-In-Progress 24.18 

431 .55 
Closing Inventory 
Traded Goods (164.53) 
Finished Goods (106.81) 
Work-In-Progress (72.53) 

(343.86) 

87.69 -

( Rs. in Millions ) 

Year Ended 
March 31 2018 

12,610.02 
24.15 

757.18 

11.33 
7.41 

13,410.09 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

46.93 
6.01 

29.00 
-

5.67 
47.00 
3.45 

24.36 
162.42 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

~65.25 

8,402.49 
(552.82) 

(64.621 
8,250.30 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

2,519.73 
2,519.73 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

31.38 
63.50 
28.94 

123.82 

(188.37) 
(215.02) 
(24.18) 

(427.57) 

(303.75) -" e\'Qie.s v~<' 
l~1~ ( tr ·v ' p~ ~. ~ .. · ; ..... -
(.(!~ ~ ~- v S!1 

Q</' .......__- .. 

·-·~·.P:.:E' ';11 * -
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Note 33 · Other manufacturing and EPC project expenses 

Particulars 

Stores & Spares Consumption 
Clearing & Forwarding Charges 
Frll:tory Rent Expenses 
Electricity Char~es 
Labour Charges 
Job Work Charges 
Repairs & Maintenance:-

Repairs to Machinery 
Repairs to Building 

EPC project expenses 

Note 34 : Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 

Salaries and incentives 
Directors Remuneration 
Contribution to PF & Other Funds 
Staff Welfare expenses 
Less: Elimination of employee expense for subsidiaries 

Note 35 · Sales administration and other expenses ' ' 
Particulars 

Rent 
Amortisation of deferred portion of financial asset carried at amortized cost 
Insurance 
Rates and taxes 
Legal and professional 
Auditors remuneration 
Travelling & conveyance 
Warranty 
Business promotion expenses 
Commission 
Packing materials expenses 
Transportation freight & handling charges 
Operation & maintenance expenses 
Deviation mechanism charges 
Provision for doubtful debts 
Bad debts (Net reversal of provision for doubtful debts of Rs.29.08 million) 
Provision for expected credit loss 
Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment 
Corporate social responsibility expense 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Less: Elimination of other expense for subsidiaries 

Note 36 : Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest expense 
Other borrowing costs 

Year Ended 
March 31 , 2019 

26.55 
41.05 
40.07 

100.81 
216.64 

5.97 

6.10 
0.42 

260.83 
698.44 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

387.19 
39.95 
13.43 
15.85 

(25.42) 
431.00 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

27.75 
4.99 

13.63 
2.16 

64.72 
5.29 

57.36 
65.18 

271.68 
117.65 
147.04 
339.92 

4.27 
7.10 
-

64.57 
1.46 
0.27 
8.97 

84.95 
(108.70) 

1,180.28 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

531.22 
29.92 

561.14 

( Rs. in Millions ) 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

20.21 
41 .53 

8.Y4 
54.73 

129.99 
28.65 

5.72 
2.16 

290.49 
582.42 

Year Ended 
March 31 , 2018 

302.60 
38.91 
10.27 
15.25 
(5.41) 

361.62 

Year Ended 
March 31 , 2018 

28.42 
4.00 

12.39 
6.57 

23.03 
2.50 

44.05 
~0.3~ 

62.41 
20.94 

124.63 
226.89 

7.69 
26.48 
29.08 
0.71 
9.28 

144.20 
6.87 

94.02 
(20.04) 
894.45 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

519.88 
52.07 
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( Rs. in Millions ) 

Note 37 · Depreciation and amortization expense 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Depreciation on property, plant ;mc1 P.I]Uipment 184.42 72.05 
Amortisation on intangible assets 178.99 209.51 

:lfi:l41 281.56 

Note JO : [ Xl. t:1Jliumtlllerns 

P~rti.-uliri 
YPM t-nriPrl Yoar lindod 

MdtCh 31,2019 March 31, :Mil 

Gain on disposal of invenstment 370.51 -

370.51 . 

During the year Investment in wholly owned subsidiary Waaneep Solar Private Limited and Waaree Japan KK (step down subsidiary) 
has been c1isposed off by its parent company w~~rr.r. Fnr.rgies Limited and Rasila lntarn;.~liunal Pte. Ltd, respectively. r-~.:110 .!,1 milli11n-; 
t~J.ltesent derecognttton ot carrying amount of the net assets, recognition of the fair value of the consideration rP.ceived and recognition 
of the gain associated with the loss of control attributable to the controlling interest in subsidiaries. 

NntP :lq · F~rnin!Ji per oquity ohorot 

Particulars 

Basic I Dilutive Eilmings per Share 
Profit!( Loss) attributable to Equity shareholders 
Weighted average numhP.r of P.IJIIity 'Shares 
Basic Earnings Per Share 
Face value per Share 

Note 40 : Contingent Liabilities 
a} Contingent liabilities 

Particulars 

Contingent liabilities not provided for: 
\,lrtim::~ rtOilin'>l thP Hnlrlina Comp<~ny not aoknowlodgod oo dcbt3 
Disputed Statutory Liability of Holding Company 
Guarantee given by Bank on behalf of the the Group 
_§@rantee given by Company on ~.of the Group \.nmpilny 
Quarantee given by Group to others 
Letter of Credit Outstanding of Holding_ Company 
Inland/Export Bill Discounting of Holding Company 
TOTAL 

b) Contingent assets 

Year Ended Year ~nded 
March 31, 7019 March 31, 2018 

A1~ 75 2~J.22 

107.14 '197.14 
~ . 1 6 1.23 

10 10 

As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

M.ll J4.:.!U 
117.36 156.76 
810.52 191 .39 

1,000.27 
554.39 70.00 
126.21 92.68 

1,506.20 1,098.90 
3168.79 3 524.20 

During the year the Parent company has entered into Share Purchase Agreement and its amendment for sale of the investment in its 
wholly owned subsidiary 'Waaneep Solar Private Limited'. As per terms of the agreement Rs. 420.57 millions is withheld by the buyers 
which will be remitted on closure of pending litigations and obligations in such subsidiary. The company has recognized Rs. 158.00 
million during the year on the basis of certainty and balance amount of Rs. 262.57 miilion will be recognized as income on successful 
closure of such litigations and obligations which are contingent in nature. 

c) Capital commitments 

Particulars 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (Net of 
Advance) of the Group 
Total 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

32.25 

32.25 

As at 
March 31 , 2018 

412.97 
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Note 41: DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO IND AS -19-EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 

[A] Post Employment Benefit Plans: 

Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company has the following Defined Benefit Plans 

( ~ in Millions) 

Gratuity: In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("The Gratuity Plan") 
covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum p<=~ymP.nt to vested employees on retirement (subject to completion of five 
ve!lr~ of conlinuou~ t:tnpiiiYIIIt-"111}, rlt><~lh , lnr;;~r~t:"ltlltion or tormmat10n of omploymont that arc b~!~d v11 ld~l utdWII :,dl,uy ..lt ttl ll:!ltllll:! ul 
employment. Liabilities wiU1 1~ye:uu lu lhe Gratuity Plan are determtned by actuarial valuation on the reporting date and the Company makes 
contribution to the gratuity fund administered by life Insurance Companies under their respective Group Gratuity Schemes. 

The disclosure in respect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below: 

Particulars 

Present value of funded obligations 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 
Ud (A!!~l)/LliiLilily lel.vynl:.t:ll 

Movements in plan assets and plan liabilities 
As at March 31 , 2018 

Particulars 

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year: 
Transfer in/( out) obligation 
Current service cost 
Past service cost 
Interest CosU(Income) 
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income 
Actuarial (gain}lloss arising from changes in financial assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from experience adjustments 
Employer contributions 
Benefit payments 
Total 

As at March 31, 2019 

Particulars 

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year: 
Transfer in/( out) obligation 
Current service cost 
Past service cost 
Interest CosU(Income) 
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/cost 
Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from changes in financial assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from experience adjustments 
Employer contributions 
Benefit payments 
Total 

Statement of Profit and Loss 

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Employee benefit expenses : 

Current Service cost 
Interest cosU (Income) 
Expected return on plan assets 
Total amount recognised in Statement of P&L 

Defined Benefit Plans 
As at 

March 31 , 2019 
18.26 
1~.133 

(1.57) 

Present value of 
obligations 

9.90 
1.67 
2.82 
1.72 
0.69 
-

(0.57) 
(1.00\ 
-

(0.70) 
14.54 

Present value of 
obligations 

14.54 
-

4.81 
-

1.04 
-

(0.31) 
(0.28) 

-
(1.53) 
18.26 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

4.81 
(0.29) 

4.52 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

14.54 
16.01 
(1.47) 

Fair Value of plan assets 

11.26 
-
-
-

0.89 
(0.18) 

-
-

4.74 
(0.70) 
16.01 

Fair Value of plan assets 

16.01 
-
-
-

1.34 
(0.37) 
-
-

4.39 
(1.53) 
19.83 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

2.82 
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( ~ in Millions ) 

Remeasurement (gains)/ losses recognised in OCI 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability : Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/(cost) 0.37 0.18 
Change in Financial Assumptions (0.31) (0.57) 
Experience gains/(losses) (0.28) (1.00) 
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (0.22) (1.38) 

Investment pattern for Fund as on 

Category of Asset As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31 , 2018 

Government of India Securities 0% 0% 
State Government Securities 0% 0% 
High q!Jality corporate bonds 0% 0% 
Equity shares of listed companies 0% 0% 
Property 0% 0% 
Special Deposit Scheme 0% 0% 
Policy of insurance 100% 100% 
Bank Balance 0% 0% 
Other Investments 0% 0% 
Total 100% 100% 

Assumptions 

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the balance sheet, assumptions 
under lnd AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date. 

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: 

Financial Assumptions As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Discount rate 7.75% 7.60% 
Salary escalation rate 6.00% 6.00% 
Withdrawal Rates 5% at younqer aqes 5% at younger agf!s 

reducing to 1% at older reducing to 1% at older 
ages ages 

Nurmi:il retJrement age (In years) 58 ---sa 
Mortality rate Indian assured lives Indian assured lives 

mortality (2006-08) mortality (2006-08) 
ultimate ultimate 

Sensitivity 
The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are: 

As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Increase/Decrease in Increase/Decrease in 

liability liability 
Discount rate varied by 0.5% 

0.50% 17.27 13.78 
-0.50% 19.34 15.36 

Sala!Y growth rate varied by 0.5% 
0.50% 19.13 15.23 
-0.50% 17.42 13.87 

Withdrawal rate {W.R.) varied by 10% 
W.R.* 110% 18.38 14.61 
W.R.*90% ~ 18.13 14.46 

//; ~ "')\\ _,----:: ........ 

rr~ ~,~,~ r:~e,~·~~ 2\ 
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WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

( ~ in Millions ) 
The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of 
the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other 
assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption,the same method used to calculate the liability recognised in the balance 
sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the 
previous period. 

The expected future cash flows as at 31st March 2019 & as at 31st March 2018 were as follows: 

Expected contribution 
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting 
1st following year 
2nd following year 
3rd following year 
4th following year 
5th following year 
Years 6 to 10 

[B) Other long term employee benefits 

leave Encashment: 

Particulars 

Present value of unfunded obligations 
Net (Asset)/liability recognised 

Reconciliation of balances of Defined Benefit Obligations. 

Particu Iars 

Defined Obligations at the beginning of the year 
Transfer in/( out) obligation 
Current Service Cost 
Interest Cost 
Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in financial assumptions 
Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumptions 
Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience adjustments 
Benefits paid 
Defined Obligations at the end of the year 

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and loss 

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss ·• 

Particulars 

Current Service Cost 
Net Interest Cost 
Net value of remeasurements on the obligation and plan assets 
Total amount recognised in Statement of P&l 

Remeasurement (gains)/ losses recognised in OCI 

Particulars 

Due to change in demographic assumptions 
Change in Financial Assumptions 
Experience gains/(losses) 
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

Major Actuarial Assumptions 

t::7 . v ;\ 
c /:_f: ?,\. ~ ~ 

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31 , 2018 

0.53 1.68 
0.62 0.45 
0.79 0.57 
0.79 0.58 
1.99 1.57 
8.38 6.76 

Defined Benefit Plans 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31 , 2018 
24.16 16.71 
24.16 16.71 

leave Encashment- Unfunded 
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 

16.71 6.22 
. 2.02 

15.10 10.68 
1.22 0.44 
(0.32) (0.53) 
1.08 . 

(4.58) 0.89 
(5.06) (3.00) 
24.16 16.71 

Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31 , 2019 March 31, 2018 

15.10 10.68 
1.22 0.44 
(3.81) 0.36 
12.51 11.47 

Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

1.08 -
(0.32) (0.53) 
(4.58) 0.89 
(3.81) 0.36 

~~ g; ~.) 
~ 0 
~ * Q -



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31 , 2019 

( ~ in Millions ) 
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31 , 2018 
Discount Rate (%) 7.75% 7.60% 
Salary_ Escalation/Inflation (%) 6.00% 6.00% 
Withdrawal Rates 5% at younger ages 5% at younger ages 

reducing to 1% at older reducing to 1% at older 
ages ages 

Leave Availment Rate 3.00% 2.00% 
Leave Encashment Rate 0.00% 0.00% 

ThP P¥f1PrtPrl fntnrP nwh ttawa •• i t March 31 1010 &. on at Moroh 31 "'010 wcr• 1n hlkw~ =- -0 

. ~ ·" C , I I . . 

l!ltpootcd oontrlbUtlol\ As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 
PmjPr:t~>rl benefits pay;~bli in futuro yooro from the dote of reporting 
1st following year 1.85 1.38 
2nd following year 1.89 1.08 
3rd following year 1.90 1:15 
4th following year 1.81 1.06 
!JU1 tollow111y y~al 3.22 2.45 
Ytl<J tt;6 to 10 1L.1 f 9.23 

Sensitivity 
The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are: 

As at As at 

P:lnloUIII1'9 MAr"h :11 2019 Mlltl.!hll,2018 
Increase/Decrease In lnr.rease/Decrease in 

li3bility liability 
Qi~l<QUDI [ate vilriP.cl hy o !i% 

0.50% 23.15 16.00 
-0.50% 2::i.2·1 17.47 

Sabrv orowth rotc varied by 0.5% 
0.50% 25.25 17'.48 
-0.50% 23.13 15.99 

Withdrawal rate {W.R.} varied by 10% 
W.R.* 110% 24.17 16.73 
W.R.* 90% 24.14 16.69 

The sensitivity analyses above have been detenmined based on reasonably possible changes of lhP. rP.!;f1P.r.tivP. i'I!;SIImptions occurring at thi i nd of 
the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other 
assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption,the same method used to calculate the liability recognised in the balance 
sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions n~P.d in preparing the sensitivity ;mt~ly~;i~; rlirl not ch;:mgc compared with the 
previous period. 

[C] Current/ non-current classification 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Gratuity 
Current (1.57) (1.68) 
Non-current - 0.21 

(1.57) (1.47) 
Leave entitlement (including sick leave) 
Current 1.85 1.38 
Non-current 22.30 15.33 

24.16 16.71 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

Note 42 : Segment Reporting 
(i)The group has determined following reporting segments based on the information reviewed by Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker 
('CODM'). As per CODM, the Company is engaged in the business of "Solar Photovoltaic Modules and EPC of Solar Power Plants' . Based 
on the business activities during the financial year, the Company has identified the following business segments : 
a) Solar Photovoltaic Modules and EPC of Solar Power Plants 
b) Generation of Power. 

(ii)The above business segment has been identified considering (a)the nature of products and services (b) the differing risk and returns (c) 
the internal organization and management structure, and (d) the internal financial reporting systems. 

( Rs in Millions ) 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March :n, :tU111 Marr.h 31, 2018 
A. Segment Revenue 
Solar Photovoltaic Modules and EPC of Solar Power Plants 15,371.89 12,606.50 
Generation of Power 538.46 803.59 
Total Revenue 15,910.35 13,410.09 

B. Segment Results 
Uol.!lr Phutuvull <.~ii- Muuul~~ 1:111l.l ere of Solar Power Plams 864.59 725.14 
Generation of Power 515.67 380.17 
Less : Unallocable Expenses - -
Less : Depreciation 363.41 281.56 
Operating Profit 1,016.85 823.75 
Less : Finance Cost 561.14 571.95 
Add : Other Income 216.95 162.42 
Profit Before Tax & Exceptional Items 672.66 414.22 
Add : Exceptional Expenses 370.51 -
Profit Before Tax 1,043,17 414.22 
Less: Tax expense (Net) 227.65 171.67 
Profit After Tax 815.52 242.55 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31 , 2019 March 31, 2018 

C. Segments Assets 
Solar Photovoltaic Modules and EPC of Solar Power Plants 7,829.00 4,285.76 
Gtmeriition of Power 3~.:$( l:i,!l11.J1 
Total 7,867.37 10,797.07 

D. Segments liabilities 
Solar Photovoltarc Modules and EPC of Solar Power Plants 5,287.48 4,206.09 
Generation of Power - 4,833.04 
Total 5,287.48 9,039.13 

(iii) Revenue from external customer outside India and assets located outside India are not disclosed seperately as the internal monitoring is 
not done as per the CODM of the Company 

(iv) Further, the Holding Company has total revenue of more than 10% from two of its customers. Revenue from customer one is Rs.2,696.93 
Millions and second customer is Rs.2,036.61 Millions. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

Note 43 : Related Party disclosures 
a. List of related parties 
i) Key Managerial Persons 
Mr. Hitesh Doshi 
Mr. Viren Doshi 
Mr. Hitesh Mehta 
Mrs. Binita Doshi 
Mr. Samir Shah 
Mr. Modesto Volpe 
Mr. Jayesh Shah 
Mr. Rajender Malia (from January 16, 2019) 
Mr. Ria7ul Hils::~n Ni!1Vi (IJpto February 91 2018) 
M1. ~~~y•tri 8vth.Jt (U~J lu Muy 3, 20 Ill) 
Mr. Kiran Jain (from May 30, 2018) 

ii) Relative of Directors 
Mr. Chimanlal Doshi 
Ms. Rasila Doshi 
Mr. Pujan P. Doshi 
Mr An kit H. f'loihi (Uplo Octohor :11 , :'1017) 
Mr. Monish Mehta (Upto June 30, 2018) 

iii) Co Venture 

Chairman and Managing Director 
Whole time Director 
Whole tirne Director I CFO 
Non Executive Director 
Non Executive Director 
Non Executive Director 
Independent Director 
Additional Director 
lndopcndcnt Piror.tor 
UUIIIIJdll y :.J~LJ ~ldi y 
Company Secretary 

North Eastern Electric Power Corporation Limited (upto December 11, 2017) 

iv) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel and I or their Relatives 
Mahavir Thermoequip 
Cesare Bonetti India Private Limited 

Waaree PV Technologies Private Limited 
Patan Solar Private Limited 
Waaree MM Petrotech Private Limited 
Dhaata Solar LLP 
Omntec Waaree ATG Private Limited 

Sattva Investment Advisors Private Limited 
Waaree Solilr Thflrmflll l P 
Waaree Solar Thermal Pvt. Ltd. 
Dhumketu Solar LLP 
~unmount Engineering LLr 
Greentech Power Private Limited 
Waa Mall LLP 
Adidewa Solar LLP 
Sangam Renewables Limited (Formerly Sangam Advisors Limited) 
Sterling & Wilson-Waaree Pv1 Ltd 
8M Solar Fund Private Ltd. 

Jain Education and Empowerment Trust (JEET) 
Shri Chimanlal Tribhuvandas Doshi Charitable Trust 

b. Transactions with Related Parties : 

( Rs in Millions ) 

Name of Party 
Year Ended Year Ended 

Nature of Transaction March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Mr. Hitesh Doshi Remuneration 12.75 12.75 
Mr.Viren Doshi Remuneration 10.20 10.20 
Mr. Hitesh Mehta Remuneration 17.00 12.00 
Mr. Jayesh Shah Director's sitting fees 0.40 0.40 
Mr. Samir Shah Director's sitting fees 0.35 0.35 
Mr. Riazul Hasan Naqvi Director's sitting fees - 0.05 
Mr. Rajender Malia Director's sitting fees 0.05 -

Ms. Gayatri Borkar Salary 0.10 1.21 
Mr. Kiran Jain Salary 0.93 -

Mr. Chimanlal Doshi Rent paid 13.20 13.20 

~ f¢tg;e~ 
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WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

( Rs in Millions ) 

Name of Party Nature of Transaction Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31 , 2019 March 31, 2018 

Ms. Rasila Doshi Rent paid 6.60 6.60 
Mr. Pujan Doshi Salary 0.50 0.48 
Mr. Ankit Doshi Salary - 0.15 
Mr. Manish Mehta Salary 0.41 0.22 
Waacox Energy Private LimitP.ci Sales 124.30 -
~rth Fastern Electric Power Coreoraliun Limited Puroho!lc of lnvc3tmcnts - 038.7G 

Mahavir Thermoequip 
Purchases 6.34 0.53 
Sales 0.01 -
Loan Taken 4.52 -

Loan Repaid 4.52 1.50 
Loan Granted 238.48 539.67 
Loan Received back 328.19 256.94 

Cesare Bonetti India Private Limited 
Other Receivables Received back - 505.28 
Interest Income 4.54 1.32 
Capital Purchases - 6.01 
Purchases 178.97 -
Capital Sales 6.79 -
Sales 112.77 -

Waaree PV Technologies Private Limited Purchases - 14.90 
Purchases - 78.63 
Loan Granted 0.00 23.40 

Patan Solar Private Limited Loan Received back 0.00 73.91 
Loan Taken - 0.00 
Loan Repaid - 0.00 

Waaree MM Petrotech Private Limited Sundry Balance written off - 0.03 
Dhata Solar LLP Sundry Balance written off - 0.04 
Omntec Waaree A TG Private Limited Purchases 87.60 -

Sattva Investment Advisors Private Limited Professional Fees 2.50 2.50 
Loan Granted - 1111'1 

Waaree Solar Thermal LLP Loan Received back 0.08 1.60 
Interest Income - 0.09 

Dhumketu Solar LLP 
Loan Received back - 1.50 
Interest Income - 0.06 
Loan Granted 15.53 202.81 
Loan Received back 24.00 131.85 

Sunmount Engineering LLP 
Loan Taken - 75.08 
Loan Repaid - 75.08 
Interest Income 10.36 3.76 
Purchases 5.06 1.46 

Greentech Power Private Limited Loan Repaid - 20.00 
Loan Taken 0.25 10.49 
Loan Repaid 0.51 0.53 

Waa Mall LLP Interest Paid 1.20 0.52 
Purchases 1.50 75.12 
Sales 10.60 -
Loan Granted 88.66 -

Loan Received back 64.03 -
Interest Income 1.24 -
Sale of Investment - 0.10 

Sangam Renewables Limited 
Capital Purchases 0.16 -

Project Expenses 44.67 12.04 
Sales - 35.05 
Services 0.18 -
Loan Taken 2.41 -
Interest Paid 0.17 -



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31 , 2019 

( Rs in Millions ) 

Name of Party Nature of Transaction 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Sterling & Wilson-Waaree Pvt Ltd Sales 1.25 230.14 

Sales 83.54 31.18 
8M Solar Fund Private Ltd. Sales Return 10.76 -

Services 0.13 --
Jain Education and Empowerment Trust (JEET) Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 3.91 4.35 

c. Balance Outstanding of Related Parties : 

Name of Party Receivable I Payable As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Mr. Hitesh Doshi Salary and Reimbursements Payable - 0.90 

Mr. Viren Doshi Salary and Reimbursements Payable 0.12 0.74 

Mr. Hitesh Mehta Salary and Reimbursements Payable 0.62 -
Ms. Gayatri Borkar Salary and Reimbursements Payable - 0.09 

Mr. Kiran Jain Salary and Reimbursements Payable 0.09 -
Mr. Chimanlal Doshi Security Deposits 13.00 13.00 

Ms. Rasila Doshi Security Deposits 6.00 6.00 
Mr. Pujan Doshi Salary and Reimbursements Payable 0.05 0.04 
Waacox Energy Private Limited Advances from customers 418.33 -

Trade Payables 0.69 -
Mahavir Thermoequip 

Trade Receivables - 2.58 

Investment in Convertible Preference Shares 720.00 720.00 

Trade Receivables 114.24 -

Cesare Bonetti India Private Limited 
Capital Receivables 6.79 -

Trade Payables 0.00 5.66 

Loan Receivables 496.58 582.12 
Advance to Suppliers - 0.85 

Waaree PV Technologies Private Limited Trade Payables 3.11 3.31 

Trade Receivables 0.19 3.12 
Waaree Solar Thermal LLP Advance to Suppliers 0.15 -

Loan Receivablcc - 0.08 

Waaree Solar Thermal Pvt. Ltd, 
Trade Receivables - 3.12 

Loan l{eceivables - 0.08 

Dhumketu Solar LLP Advance to Suppliers - 0.06 
Sunmount Engineering LLP Loan Receivables 83.19 82.33 

Greentech Power Private Limited Trade Receivables 0.48 0.48 

Waa Mall LLP 
Trade Payables - 40.44 

Loan Payables 11.25 10.44 

Loan Receivables 25.75 0.00 

Sangam Renewables Limited 
Trade Receivables 3.06 13.72 

Trade Payables 28.83 3.10 
Loan Payables 2.56 0.00 

8M Solar Fund Private Ltd. Trade Receivables 69.74 32.74 
Shri Chimanlal Tribhuvandas Doshi Charitable Trust Trade Payables 1.32 1.32 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

Note 44 : Disclosure regarding income from Engineering, Procurement and Construction Contracts 

Particulars 

i) The amount of contract revenue lt:lCoynised as revenue during the ye<lr 

ii) The aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognised profits upto the close of the year 
iii) The amount of advances received 
iv) Amount due from customer 
v) Amount due to customer 

Note 45 : Operating Lease 

Future minimum lease payment under non-<:ancellable operating leases is as follows: 

Particulars 

Not later than one year 
Later than one year and not later than five years 
Later than five years 

TOTAL 

Note 46: Disclosures with regards to section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

For Investments, refer Note-3 

For Corporate guarantees given, refer Note40 

For Loan given: 
The Com pay has granted Unsecured loan to certain parties for general corporate purpose 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

1:!7.27 

51.10 
0.83 

42.14 
-

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

63.02 
217.97 
144.02 

425.01 

( Rs in Millions ) 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

1,904.79 

1,664.20 
7.08 

661.94 
-

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

57.98 
220.13 
172.51 

450.62 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018 

Rate of Interest Amount Rate of Interest Amount 

Others 0 to 12% 636.76 Nil 82.42 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Not3s to c01solidated financial staterrents for the Year Ended March 3 , 2019 

Note 47 : Financial instruments- Fair values and risk manc.gemem 

A. Accounting classification and fair values 

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining ard dis:::losing he fair value of financial instr Jments by valuation technique: 
Level1 : quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for icentic:al assel3 or liabilities. 
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a signiicant ef ect on the recorded fair valu9 are observable, either directly or h j irectly. 
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significa· t effe-ct on th~ recorded fair value that are not based on observable market d;;t3. 

( Rs. in Millions ) 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair V3lues of financial assets and financialliabil ties, including their levels in the fair l'alue hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for 
financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair vaiL.e if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

Financial Asset & Liabilities as at Non 
Routed through Profit & Loss Routed through OCI Carried at 

Total 
31st March 2019 Currerr: 

Curreri Total Amortised 
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Le.r-311 Level2 Level 3 Total Cost Amount 

Financial assets 
Investments 820.(•8 - 820.08 - - - - - - - - 820.08 820.08 
Trade receivables 126.~0 2,151.50 2,278.00 2,278.00 2,278.00 
Security deposits 31.'9 - 31.79 - - - - - - - - 31.79 31.79 
Other financial assets 107.F.3 221 93 329.76 329.76 329.76 

Other Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents - 223 98 223.98 - - - - - - - - 223.98 223.98 
Bank balances other than cash and cash - 971 J4 971.34 - - - - - - - -

equivalents 971.34 971.34 
Loans 643 99 643.99 - - - - - - - - 643.99 643.99 

1,086.20 4,212 ;4 5,298.95 . . . . . . . . 5,298.95 5,298.95 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 658.~ 15 L3 673.75 - - - - - - - - 673.75 673.75 
Trade payables 3,077 92 3,077.92 - - - - - - - - 3,077.92 3,077.92 
Other financial liabilities 585L1 585.41 - - - - - - - - 585.41 585.41 

658.l2 3,678 i6 4,337.08 . . . . . . . . 4,337.08 4,337.08 
~-



# 

WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consoli:fated financial statements for the Year Ended March 11,2019 

( Rs. in Millions } 

Financial Asset & Liabilities as at Non 
Routed through Profit & Loss Routed through OCI Carried at 

Total 
Current Total 

31st March 2018 Current Level1 Level2 Level3 Total Level1 Level2. Lev~;l3 Total 
Amortised 

Amount 
Cost 

Financial assets 
Investments 820.00 144.36 964.36 - - - - - - - - 820.00 820.00 
Trade receivables 147.95 803.34 951.29 - - - - - - - - 951.29 951.29 
Security deposits 30.11 - 30.11 30.11 30.11 
Other financial assets 74.08 13.31 87.40 87.40 87.40 

Other Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents - 61.77 61.77 - - - - - - - 61.77 61.77 
Bank balances other than cash and cash - 223.39 223.39 - - - - - - -

equivalents 223.39 223.39 
Loans - 664.54 664.54 - - - - - - - - 664.54 664.54 

1,072.14 1,910.71 2,982.85 - - . - - - - . 2,838.49 2,838.49 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 4,106.85 507.80 4,614.65 4,614.65 4,614.65 
Trade payables - 2,087.16 2,087.13 - - - - - - - - 2,087.16 2,087.16 i 

Other financial liabilities - 765.29 765.29 765.29 765.29 1 

4,106.85 3,360.25 7,467.10_ . . . . 
~-

. . . 7,467.1D_ 7,467.10 I 
-

The Fair Value of the Financial Assets & Liabilities are induded at the amct.nt al which the instrument could be exchanged in a cvrenl transaction betwe:!n willing p3rties,other than in a forced or 
liquidation sale. The management assessed that fair value jf cash and cash 8quivalents, trade payables and other current financial a1sets and liabilities apprJximate the r carrying amounts largely due 
to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

1~'~ , ... ~ .,. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 201 9 

( Rs. in Millions ) 
Note 47 : Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued) 

B. Financial Risk Management 

B.i. Risk management framework 
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, t:retlit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 

B.ii. Credit risk 
Credrl11~k ~~lire lisk ur financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and 
arises principally from the Group's trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.The maximum exposure to 
Clt:;~ilri~~ irl l.d~~ ur dlllliH Ol l iilll :l:-~lli ll;iflllliP.III~ CI\I/PrPr1 hPinw I~ [P~!fl('t9d to thi rr riipidiVIl carrying ~mount. 

(a) Trade and other receivables from customers 

Credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and monitoring the 
creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. · 

The Group measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in 
which the entity operates. The Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision 
matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors such as credit ratings from credit rating agencies, financial condition, 
ageing of accounts receivable and the Group's historical experience for customers. 

Ageing of Accounts receivables · 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31 , 2018 

Not Due 872.63 154.09 
0 - 6 months 1,240.03 430.43 
6- 12 months 92.68 366.78 
Beyond 12 months 72.66 -
Total 2,278.00 951.29 

Financial Assets are considered to bP. of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk 

The movement of the allowance for lifetime expected credit loss is stated below: 

Particulars 
Aut As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31 , 2018 
Opening provision 38.02 28.74 
Add : Additional provision made 1.46 9.28 
Less : Provision reversed - -

Closing provisions 39.48 38.02 

(b) Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances 
The Group held cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of Rs. 223.98 million at 31st March 2019 (31st March 2018: Rs. 61.79 million). 
The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank with good credit ratings and financial institution counterparties with good market standing. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

( Rs. in Millions ) 
Note 47 : Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued) 

B. iii. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled 
by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

Liquidity ricr. ic monngod by Group through offootivo fund management of th~ Orvup'~ ~l101 t , lllclliu1 11 diiJ lu11y- l~:;1 1 11 [uiii.lhiy dlli.l ll4uiJily 
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and other borrowing 
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted. 

Maturity Analysis of Significant Financial Liabilities 

As at March 31, 2019 Total On demand Upto 6 Months 6-12 Months 
More than 12 

Months 
Non-Current Borrowings 658.32 - - - 658.33 
Borrowings 15.43 15.44 - - -

Trade payables 3,077.92 - 3,077.88 - -

Other current financial liabilities 585.41 - 249.30 336.11 -

As at March 31, 2018 Total On demand Upto 6 Months 6-12 Months 
More than 12 

Months 
Non-Current Borrowings 4,614.65 - - - 4,614.65 
Other Non-Current financial liabilities 765.29 - - - 765.29 
Borrowings 507.80 404.21 103.59 - -
Trade payables 2,087.14 - 2,087.14 - -

Other current financial liabilities 765.29 - 300.54 464.75 -

B.iv. Market risk 
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

Note 47: Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued) 
B.iv.a Currency risk 

( Rs. in Millions ) 

The Group is exposed lo currency risk on account of its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupee. 
Our exposure are mainly denominated in U.S. dollars and European dollars. The Group's business model incorporates assumptions on currency 
risks and ensures any exposure is covered through the normal business operations. This intent has been achieved in all years presented. The 
Group has put in place a Financial Risk Management Policy to identify the most effective and efficient ways of managing the currency risks. 

Exposure to currency risk 
The currency profile of financi~l ~s.~P.t~ ~nn fin~nd~l liabilities as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are 3c below: 

A~ ~I M~rch 31,2019 Rs.lh Millions tUKU Rs. in Millions USD Rs. in Millions RMB 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 0.53 0.01 292.79 4.23 
Loans 3.46 0.05 
Cash and cash equivalents 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Net exposure for assets 0.53 0.01 296.25 4.28 

Financial liabilities 
Short Term Borrov~ngs 4.18 0.06 
Trade Payables 2.13 0.03 1,190.06 17.20 9.32 0.90 
Other current liabilities 0.06 0.00 
Net exposure for liabilities 2.13 O.Q3 1,194.30 17.26 9.32 0.90 
Net exposure (Assets· Liabilities) (1.60) (0.02) (898.05) (12.98) (9.32) (0.90) 

As at March 31, 2018 Rs. in Millions EURO Rs. in Millions USD Rs. in Millions RMB 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 0.55 0.01 47.57 0.73 
Cash and cash equivalents 0.03 0.00 2.41 0.04 
Net exposure for assets 0.58 0.01 49.99 0.77 

Financial liabilities 
Short Term Borrowings 103.59 1.59 
Trade Payabies 3.57 0.04 1,173.92 18.05 
Net exposure for liabilities 3.57 0.04 1,277.51 19.64 

Net exposure (Assets· Liabilities) p .OO) (0.04) (1 ,227.52) (18.87) 

Sensitivity analysis 

A reasonably possible strengthening I (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars and European dollars at 31st March would have 
affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This 
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. In 
cases where the related foreign exchange fluctuation is capitalised to fixed assets or recognised directly in reserves, the impact indicated below 
may affect the Group's income statement over the remaining life of the related fixed assets or the remaining tenure of the borrowing respectively. 

Impact of movement on Profit or Ooss) and Equity : 
Effect in INR (before tax) 
For the year ended March 31, 2019 
1'/o movement 
USD 
EUR 

Effect in INR (before tax) 
For the year ended March 31,2018 
1'/o movement 
USD 
EUR 

Derivative financial instruments 

Profit or (loss) and Equity 
Strengthening Weakening 

8.94 (8.94) 
0.02 (0.02) 
8.96 (8.96) 

Profit or (loss) and Equity 
Strengthening Weakening 

12.28 (12.28) 
0.03 (0.03) 

12.31 (12.31) 

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in 
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counter party for this contracts is generally a bank. This derivative financial instruments are 
valued based on quo led prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs thar are directly or indirectly observable in the market 
place. 

The details in respect of outstanding foreign currency forward and option contracts are as follows. 

I Particulars 
As at March 31 , 2019 As at March 31, 2018 
USD INR USD INR 

Forward contracts 9.00 622.54 . . 
Option Contracts 4.50 311.27 . . 

13.50 933.81 . 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

Note 47 : Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued) 

B.iv.b Interest rate risk 

( Rs. in Millions ) 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing liabilities and assets. The 
Group manages its interest rate risk by monitoring the movements in the market interest rates dosP.Iy. 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

Group's interest ratP. risk <lrisP.s rrim<lrily frnm hnrrowinas. The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing fin~mci ::~l inctrumcntc ic 
<lc;fnllnwc; 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Total Borrowings 673.77 4,614.65 
Total of Variable Rate Financial Liabilities 673.77 4,614.65 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instrumen.ts 
Th~ ,~mitivity ~nJiy'i' liwlvw h.-v~~ li111111 tMI:J1111i11uLI IJJwLI u11 tllu UKIJUUUIU to lntcrc:~t rotc!l for flnonclel Instrument~ !t the end ot tM 
reporting year and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of thP. fin<Jnr.i<ll yP.Clr Clnd held constant throughout the reporting 
period in the case of inslruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk 
internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates : 

Cash flow sensitivity (net) 
INR 
March 31, 2019 
V<:ulable-rate loan Instruments 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 

March 31 , 2018 
Vr~riable-rate loan instruments 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 

B.iv.c Other price risk 

Profit or loss 
~0 bp tncraaill 50 bp docroaco 

(3.37) 3.37 
(3.37) 3.37 

(23.07) 23.07 
(23.07) 23.07 

The Group invests its surplus funds in various Equity and debt instruments . These comprise of mainly liquid schemes of mutual funds 
(liquid investments), Equity shares, Debentures and fixed deposits. This investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising 
from changes in the interest rates or market yields which may impact the return and value of such investments. However due to the very 
short tenor of the underlying portfolio in the liquid schemes, these do not pose any significant price risk. 

Note 48 : Capital Management 

The Group alms to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to its 
shareholders. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the debt equity ratio and make necessary adjustments in the capital 
structure for the development of the business. The capital structure of the Group is based on management's judgement of the appropriate 
balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day - to - day needs. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shmcholdcrs or issue new shares. 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31 , 2019 March 31, 2018 

Total debts 1,070.29 5,039.26 
Total equity 2,579.89 1,757.94 
Total debts to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 0.41 2.87 

Note : For the purpose of computing debt to equity ratio, equity includes Equity share capital and Other Equity and Debt includes Long term 
borrowings, Short term borrowings and current maturities of long term borrowings. 



WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 
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{ Rs. in Millions ) 
Note 49 : Additional Information, as required under Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as 

Net Assets i.e. total 
Share in other Share in total 

assets minus total Share in Profit & Loss 
comprehensive income comprehensive income 

liabilities 
Name of the Enterprise 

As %of As %of As %of As %of 
consolidated 

( Rs. in 
consolidated 

( Rs. in 
consolidated 

{ Rs. in 
consolidated 

( Rs. in 

net assets 
Millions) 

profit & loss 
Millions) 

profit & loss 
Millions) 

profit & loss 
Millions) 

For the year ended March 
31,2019 
Parent 
Waaree Energy Limited J6.till% 1 .~ti~.ti1 02.34% 731.47 100.00% 4.~4 92.:10% TIG.71 

Subsidiaries 
Indian 
Waaneep Solar Private 
Limited 0.00% - 11.70% 92.67 0.00% - 11.64% 92.67 
Blue Rays Solar Private 
Limited 15.16% 391.02 -0.01% (0.09} 0.00% - -0.01% (0.09} 
Woorcc Color energy 
Private Limited -0.32% (8.35) -1.23% (9.74} 0.00% - -1 .22% (9.74} 
Saswata Solar LLP 28.61% 738.19 0.00% (0.02} 0.00% - 0.00% (0.02} 
Waaneep Solar One Pvt. 
ltd. 0.02% 0.64 -0.01% (0.05} 0.00% - -0.01% (0.05} 
Foreign 
Rasila International Pte 
Limited -0.16% (4.25} -0.07% (0.59} 0.00% - -0.07% (0.59} 
Waaree Japan KK 0.00% - 0.24% 1.87 0.00% - 0.23% 1.87 

Net Total 2,579.89 815.50 4.24 819.76 
Minority Interest in all 
subsidiaries 0.00% 0.00 -2.95% (23.35} 0.00% - -2.93% (23.35} 
Total 100.00% 2.579.89 100.00% 7!12.15 100.00% .4.2.4 100.00% 7!16.41 

For the year ended March 
31,2018 
Parent 
W33roo Energy Limited -76.01% (1,352.02) 72.76% 1G7.79 100% 0.67 72.84% 168.46 

Subsidiaries 
Indian 
Waaneep Solar Private 
Limited 101.73% 1,788.44 6.96% 16.06 0.00% - 6.94% 16.06 
Blue Rays Solar Private 
Limited 32.10% 564.21 -0.03% (0.07} 0.00% - -0.03% (0.07} 
Waaree Solar Energy 
Private Limited 1.05% 18.44 10.15% 23.41 0.00% - 10.12% 23.40 
Saswata Solar LLP 41.99% 738.23 -0.05% (0.12} 0.00% - -0.05% (0.12} 
WaaCox Energy Private 
Limited 0.00% - 0.00% -
Foreign 0.00% 0.00% 
Rasila International Pte 
Limited -0.24% (4.19} -0.67% (1.56) 0.00% - -0.67% (1 .56) 
Waaree Japan KK 0.27% 4.83 16.06% 37.04 0.00% - 16.01% 37.04 

Net Total 1,757.94 242.54 0.67 243.21 
Minority Interest in all 
subsidiaries 0.00% 0.00 -5.17% (11.92} 0.00% - -5.15% (11.92} 
Total 100.00% 1,757.94 100.00% 230.62 100.00% 0.67 100.00% 231.29 
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WAAREE ENERGIES LIMITED 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2019 

Note 50 : The list of subsidiaries and associates in the consolidated financial statements are as under : 

Country of 
Proportion of Ownership Interest 

Name of the Enterprise Year Ended Year Ended Incorporation 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Suboidiariao 
Wa<meep Solar Private Limited (upto 31st December. 18) lncliil 100 00% 100.00% 
Blue Rays Solar Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% 
Waaree Solar Energy Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% 
Rasila International Pte Limited Singapore 99.99% 99.99% 
Saswata Solar LLP India 99.99% 99.99% 
Waaree Japan Kk (upto 30th June, 18) Japan 100.00% 100.00% 
Waaneep Solar One Private Limited (from 20th June, 18) India 100.00% -

Associate 
Shalibhadra Energies Private Limited India 25.00% 25.00% 
Waasang Solar Private Limited (from 18th July, 18) India 26.00% -

Waasang Solar One Private Limited (from 301h August, 18) India 49.00% -

Note 51 : During the year the Income tax authorities carried out search and seizure action u/s. 132 of the Income Tax Act,1961 on the premises 
of the Parent Company. The Parent Company co-operated with the authorities and has provided necessary details/information as and when 
asked for by the Tax authorities . The notices for Income Tax assessment pursuant to the search action are yet to be received from the 
Assessing officer. 

Note 52 : Figures of the previous year have been regrouped, reclassified and/or rearranged wherever necessary. 

In tenms of our report of even date 

For S G C 0 & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

No. 112081VV~100184 

Place: Mumbai 
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ompany Secretary 
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Date: 28th May 2019 

Director & CFO 
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